







































































































































































































































































6. The State Board is authorized by the Dental Practice Act and North Carolina law
to communicate its determination that any person or entity may be violating the
provisions of the Dental Practice Act to that person or entity. N.C. Gen. Stat. §§ 90-
22(a), 90-40, and 90-40.1.

7. The State Board is authorized by the Dental Practice Act and North Carolina law
to order any person or entity suspected of violating the provisions of the Dental Practice
Act to cease and desist violating the provisions of the Act. N.C. Gen. Stat. §§ 90-22(a),
90-40, and 90-40.1.

8. The State Board and its members have the authority to enforce the provisions of
the Dental Practice Act with respect to the unauthorized and unlawful practice of
dentistry by seeking recourse to the courts of North Carolina pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat.
§§ 90-40 and 90-40.1.

9. In the event a person or entity disregards an order to cease and desist any activity
issued by the State Board, the Board is authorized by the Dental Practice Act to seek
enforcement of that order in the courts of North Carolina by injunctive relief under N.C.
Gen. Stat. § 90-40.1.

10.  Pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §§ 90-22(a), 90-40 & 90-40.1, the State Board is
authorized by the Dental Practice Act and North Carolina law to communicate its
determination that any person or entity may be violating the provisions of the Dental
Practice Act to that person or entity.

11.  Pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §§ 90-22(a), 90-40 & 90-40.1, the State Board is
authorized by the Dental Practice Act and North Carolina law to order any person or
entity suspected of violating the provisions of the Dental Practice Act to cease and desist
violating the provisions of the Act.

12. Pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 90-40.1(a), the State Board is authorized to seek
injunctions for the unauthorized practice of dentistry, and pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §
90-40 is authorized to seek criminal prosecution for the unauthorized practice of
dentistry.

13.  Under the operation of N.C. Gen. Stat. §§ 90-40 (making the unauthorized
practice of dentistry a misdemeanor) and 90-40.1 (enjoining unlawful acts), the Board has
clearly been granted the authority to notify prospective defendants in advance of
initiating a judicial proceeding.

14.  Pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 90-233(a), a dental hygienist must practice only
under the supervision of one or more licensed dentists. (Joint Stipulation { 36).
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15.  Pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 138A-38(a)(1), a member of a state occupational
licensing board may participate in an official action if “the only interest or reasonably
foreseeable benefit or detriment that accrues to the covered person ... is no greater than
that which could reasonably be forseen to accrue to all members of that profession,
occupation, or general class.”

16.  Any person or entity receiving a cease and desist letter could initiate a declaratory
ruling proceeding pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 150B-4.

17.  Any person or entity receiving a cease and desist letter has the right to pursue
relief in the courts of the State of North Carolina if they feel they have been aggrieved
pursuant to the N.C. Constitution (Article I, § 19, Law of the land, equal protection of the
laws; and Article IV, § 13, Forms of action, rules of procedure) and N.C. Gen. Stat. § 7A-
3.

18.  Any person or entity receiving a cease and desist letter has the right to pursue an
administrative hearing pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 150B-23(a).

19.  The North Carolina Constitution guarantees, and the North Carolina General
Assembly has provided the means for any aggrieved person to independently access the
state’s courts, though not necessarily pursuant to the provisions of the Dental Practice
Act. N.C. Constitution (Article I, § 18, Courts shall be open; Article I, § 19, Law of the
land, equal protection of the laws; and Article IV, § 13, Forms of action, rules of
procedure) and N.C. Gen. Stat. § 7A-3.

20.  Legislation enacted by North Carolina’s General Assembly is presumed to have a
purpose. State v. White, 101 N.C. App. 593, 605, 401 S.E.2d 106, 113 (1991).

21. A reviewing court is not free to set-aside [agency] regulations simply because it
would have interpreted the statute in a different manner.” Batterton v. Francis, 432 U.S.
416, 425-26 (1977) (holding that regulation at issue was therefore “entitled to more than
mere deference or weight. It can be set aside only if the Secretary exceeded his statutory
authority or if the regulation is ‘arbitrary, capricious, an abuse of discretion, or otherwise
not in accordance with law.””);_see also Am. Tel. & Tel. Co. v. United States, 299 U.S.
232, 236 (1936) (“This court is not at liberty to substitute its own discretion for that of
administrative officers who have kept within the bounds of their administrative powers.
To show that these have been exceeded in the field of action here involved, it is not
enough that the prescnbed system . . . shall appear to be unwise or burdensome or
inferior to another.”).!

! North Carolina law gives great weight to an agency’s interpretation of a law it administers. Frye Reg’l

Med. Ctr. v. Hunt, 350 N.C. 39, 45, 510 S.E.2d 159, 163 (1999); see also Carpenter v. N.C. Dep’t of
Human Res., 107 N.C. App. 278, 279, 419 S.E.2d 582, 584 (1992).
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22.  “Itis presumed that a public official in the performance of his official duties acts
fairly, impartially, and in good faith and in the exercise of sound judgment or discretion,
for the purpose of promoting the public good and protecting the public interest.” Russ v.
Causey, 732 F. Supp. 2d 589, 613 (E.D.N.C. 2010) (citing In re Annexation Ordinance,
No. 300-X, 304 N.C. 549, 551, 284 S.E.2d 470 (1981); Oliver v. Harper, No. 5:09-CT-
3027H, 2011 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 29499, at *29 (E.D.N.C. Mar. 22, 2011).2

23.  The administrative proceeding before the Commission is ultra vires and violates
the 10th Amendment to the U.S. Constitution.

24,  The administrative proceeding before the Commission is fundamentally flawed
under the Due Process clause of the 5th amendment to the U.S. Constitution, based on the
Commission’s prejudgments and biases.

25.  The administrative proceeding before the Commission is an ultra vires expansion
of jurisdiction and violates Article 1, Section 8 of the U.S. Constitution.

26.  The administrative proceeding before the Commission is an ultra vires expansion
of jurisdiction and is fundamentally flawed, causing the State Board to suffer immediate
and irreparable harm to its constitutional rights to Due Process.

27.  The administrative proceeding before the Commission is an ultra vires exercise of
jurisdiction and a violation of Section 4 of the Federal Trade Commission Act.

28.  The administrative proceeding before the Commission is an ultra vires exercise of
jurisdiction and a violation of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act.

29.  The administrative proceeding before the Commission is an ultra vires exercise of
jurisdiction violating the State Board’s state action immunity pursuant to Parker v.
Brown, 317 U.S. 341 (1943).

30.  The administrative proceeding before the Commission is an ultra vires exercise of
jurisdiction and violates the Administrative Procedures Act’s prohibition of arbitrary and
capricious conduct. 5 U.S.C. § 500 ez seq.

31.  The State Board is not a private party; it is a state agency. Therefore, it need only
satisfy the first prong of the Midcal test.

32.  The Commission’s assertion of Sherman Act violations hinges upon per se
illegality of majority licensees boards.

33.  The State Board is a state agency not a private actor.

% See also Painter v. Wake County Bd. of Educ., 288 N.C. 165, 178, 217 S.E.2d 650, 658 (1975) (Absent
evidence to the contrary, it will always be presumed that “public officials will discharge their duties in
good faith and exercise their powers in accord with the spirit and purpose of the law. Every reasonable
intendment will be made in support of the presumption.”).
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34. ~ The State Board acted pursuant to a clearly articulated state policy and was
subject to active supervision.

35.  Under the appropriate rule of reason analysis, the State Board has not committed
an antitrust violation.

36. Complaint Counsel did not meet its burden of showing that the State Board’s
challenged conduct had an unreasonable anticompetitive effect.

37.  The State Board did not commit a per se violation of the Sherman Act.

38.  The State Board’s actions should be judged according to the traditional rule of
reason test.

39. The State Board’s actions are lawful under the rule of reason.

40.  The nexus of the State Board’s challenged conduct was not in and did not affect
interstate commerce.

41.  Complaint Counsel did not establish liability because it has not properly defined
the relevant market. '

42. . Complaint Counsel failed to prove collusion among -State Board members in
violation of the antitrust laws.

43.  There was no credible evidence of a conspiracy between State Board members, or
between State Board members and North Carolina dentists, to engage in the challenged
conduct.

44,  Complaint Counsel could not establish collusion among State Board members
based solely on the State Board’s composition.

45.  The State Board’s challenged actions were not taken to suppress competition and
were a legitimate law enforcement activity taken in response to a prima facie violation of
the North Carolina Dental Practice Act.

46.  The relief sought by Complaint Counsel exceeds the FTC’s authority under the
FTC Act and violates the Tenth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution.

47.  The relief sought by Complaint Counsel violates the U.S. Constitution’s
Commerce Clause.

48.  Complaint Counsel has failed to meet its burden of proof.
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III. PROPOSED ORDER
PROPOSED ORDER DISMISSING COMPLAINT

The hearing in the administrative action In the Matter of The North Carolina
[State] Board of Dental Examiners, Docket 9343, having concluded, the record being
closed, counsel for both parties having briefed the relevant issues, and the Court being
fully advised,

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE FINDS:

1. Complaint Counsel has failed to meet its burden of proof in establishing a

conspiracy or collusion in restraint of trade in violation of the antitrust

laws;

2. Complaint Counsel has not demonstrated that the restraint was
unreasonable;

3. Complaint Counsel has not demonstrated that the nexus of the alleged

restraint was in or affected interstate commerce;

4.  Complaint Counsel has not used a viable or consistent definition of the
relevant market;
5. Complaint Counsel has failed to meet its burden of proof in establishing

that the Respondent State Board’s efforts to regulate non-dental teeth
whitening were beyond the rule of reason;

6. The Respondent State Board acted to enforce North Carolina law and to
protect the health, safety, and welfare of North Carolina citizens;

7. The Commission’s proposed remedies are in violation of the Tenth

Amendment of the U.S. Constitution;

88



8. The Commission’s proposed remedies exceed Congressional authorization
and are in violation of the Eleventh Amendment as well as the Commerce
" Clause of the U.S. Constitution.
THEREFQRE, IT IS ORDERED that the administrative action In the Matter of
The North Carolina [State] Board of Dental Examiners, Docket 9343, be, and is hereby
DISMISSED WITH PREJUDICE, AND THAT JUDGMENT IS ENTERED IN FAVOR
OF THE RESPONDENT.

Dated this  day of , 2011,

D. Michael Chappell
Administrative Law Judge
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This the 5th day of May, 2011.

Respectfully submitted,
ALLEN AND PINNIX, P.A.

/s/ M. Jackson Nichols

Noel L. Allen

Alfred P. Carlton, Jr.

M. Jackson Nichols

Catherine E. Lee

Brenner A. Allen, of counsel
Jackson S. Nichols, of counsel
Attorneys for Respondent

Post Office Drawer 1270
Raleigh, North Carolina 27602
Telephone: 919-755-0505
Facsimile: 919-829-8098
Email: nallen@allen-pinnix.com
mijn@allen-pinnix.com
acarlton@allen-pinnix.com
clee@allen-pinnix.com

ballen@allen-pinnix.com
isn@allen-pinnix.com
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on May 5, 2011, I electronically filed the foregoing with the
Federal Trade Commission using the FTC E-file system, which will send notification of
such filing to the following:

Donald 8. Clark, Secretary
Federal Trade Commission

600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.

Room H-113
Washington, D.C. 20580

I hereby certify that the undersigned has this date served copies of the foregoing

William L. Lanning
Bureau of Competition
Federal Trade Commission

600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.

Room NJ-6264
Washington, D.C. 20580

wlanning@ftc.gov

Melissa Westman-Cherry
Bureau of Competition
Federal Trade Commission

600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.

Room NJ-6264
Washington, D.C. 20580
mwestman@ftc.gov

Michael J. Bloom
Bureau of Competition
Federal Trade Commission

600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.

Room NJ-7122
Washington, D.C. 20580
mibloom@ftc.gov
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upon all parties to this cause by electronic mail as follows:

Steven L. Osnowitz

Bureau of Competition

Federal Trade Commission

600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.
Room NJ-6264

Washington, D.C. 20580

sosnowitz@ftc.gov

Tejasvi Srimushnam

Bureau of Competition

Federal Trade Commission

600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.
Room NJ-6264

Washington, D.C. 20580
tsrimushnam@fic.gov

Richard B. Dagen

Bureau of Competition

Federal Trade Commission

600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.
Room NJ-6264

Washington, D.C. 20580

rdagen(@ftc.gov



Michael D. Bergman
Federal Trade Commission

600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.

Room H-582
Washington, D.C. 20580
‘mbergman(@ftc.gov

Laurel Price
Federal Trade Commission

600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.

Room NJ-6264
Washington, DC 20580

lprice(@ftc.gov

Geoffrey Green

Federal Trade Commission
601 New Jersey Avenue, N.W.
Washington, DC 20001
ggreen(@ftc.gov

Michael Turner

Federal Trade Commission

600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.
Room NJ-6264

Washington, DC 20580
mturner@ftc.gov

I also certify that I have sent courtesy copies of the document via Federal Express

and electronic mail to:

The Honorable D. Michael Chappell

Administrative Law Judge
Federal Trade Commission

600 Pennsylvania Avenue N.W.
Room H-110

Washington, D.C. 20580

oalj@ftc.gov
This the 5th day of May, 2011.

/s/ M. Jackson Nichols

M. Jackson Nichols‘

CERTIFICATION FOR ELECTRONIC FILING

I further certify that the electronic copy sent to the Secretary of the Commission is
a true and correct copy of the paper original and that I possess a paper original of the
signed document that is available for review by the parties and by the adjudicator.

/s/ M. Jackson Nichols

M. Jackson Nichols
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION
OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES

In the Matter of

OF DENTAL EXAMINERS,

)
)
)
THE NORTH CAROLINA [STATE] BOARD ) DOCKET NO. 9343
)
)
Respondent. )

)

RESPONDENT’S EXHIBIT LIST
PURSUANT TO RULE 3.46(b)




RESPONDENT’S EXHIBIT LIST PURSUANT TO RULE 3.46(b)

Exhibit Exhibit Title/Description Transcript Page | Transcript Page | Exhibit Confidential
Number Where Exhibit Where Exhibit Cross- Treatment
Admitted Discussed Reference
Selected documents from Amazing Grace | PC Tr. 2, 56 CX0050-001
RX00001 | Spa Investigative File, Case 07-021 [JX1, Att. B] CX0347
Selected documents from Bailey's PCTr. 2,56 CX0249
Lightning Whitening Investigative File, [JX1, Att. B] CX0304
RX00002 | Case 08-133
PCTr. 2,56 CX0111-002
[IX1, Att. B] to 007
Selected documents from Beack Bunz CX0294
Tanning Salon Investigative File, Case 09- CX0356
RX00003 | 047 CX0362
PCTr. 2,56 CX0043-001 6/18/2010
[JX1, Att. B} to 010, 012 to | Protective
013 Order
CX0278
Selected documents from {Bleach Bright} CX0369
RX00004 | Investigative File, Case 08-029 CX0404
PCTr. 2, 56 2169:6 —2169:24 | CX0055 6/18/2010
Selected documents from {BleachBright} | [JX1, Att. B] 2170:14 — CX0327 Protective
RX00005 | Investigative File, Case 08-072 2172:11 : Order
Selected documents from PCTr. 2,56 CX0250
BleachBright/Inspire Skin & Body [IX1, Att. B] CX0251
RX00006 | Investigative File, Case 08-214




Exhibit

Exhibit Title/Description

Transcript Page | Transcript Page | Exhibit Confidential
Number Where Exhibit Where Exhibit Cross- Treatment
_ Admitted Discussed Reference
Selected documents from Body, Mind & PCTr. 2, 56 : CX0348
Spirit Day Spa Investigative File, Case 06- | [JX1, Att. B]
RX00007 |217 ‘
Selected documents from Carmel Day Spa | PC Tr. 2, 56 CX0192
RX00008 | & Salon Investigative File, Case 07-146 [JX1, Att. B] CX0361
PCTr. 2, 56 CX0245 6/18/2010
Selected documents from {Celebrity [JX1, Att. B] CX0280 Protective
RX00009 | Smiles} Investigative File, Case 07-208 CX0365 Order
Selected documents from Champagne PCTr. 2,56 CX0078
~ | Taste/Lash Lady Investigative File, Case [JX1, Att. B} CX0282
RX00010 | 07-114
: PCTr. 2, 56 CX0034-003,
[JX1, Att. B] 005 to 007
CX0036-002
Selected documents from Edie's Salon to 013
RX00011 Panache Investigative File, Case 07-146 CX0284
{Fax from Larry Cook to Dental Board, | PC Tr. 2, 56 6/18/2010
from The Extra Smile, Inc.} [JX1, Att. B] Protective
RX00012 | Investigative File, Case 07-146 Order
Fax from {Stuart Whiddon to Carolin PCTr. 2,56 6/18/2010
Bakewell, from Fantasticians, Inc.} [JX1, Att. B] Protective
RX00013 | Investigative File, Case 08-206 Order
: Selected documents from {Florida White | PC Tr. 2, 56 CX0252 6/18/2010
| Smile/Sam's Club} Investigative File, [JX1, Att. B] CX0406 Protective
RX00014 | Case 08-083 Order




Exhibit

Exhibit Title/Description

Transcript Page | Transcript Page | Exhibit Confidential
Number Where Exhibit Where Exhibit Cross- Treatment
Admitted Discussed Reference
PC Tr. 2,56 CX0040-002
[IX1, Att. B] to 009
Selected documents from Hollywood CX0041-001
Smiles/Brandi Temple Investigative File, to 002, 006 to
RX00015 | Case 04-188 007
Selected documents from PCTr. 2, 56 6/18/2010
{iBriteExpress/Joe Willett} Investigative | [JX1, Att. B] Protective
RX00016 | File, Case 08-199 Order
, PCTr. 2,56 6/18/2010
Selected documents from {Lite Brite} [7X1, Att. B] Protective
RX00017 | Investigative File, Case 08-132 Order
Selected documents from Master Tanning | PC Tr. 2, 56 CX0300
RX00018 | Salon Investigative File, Case 08-132 [JX1, Att. B]
PCTr. 2,56 CX0198 6/18/2010
Selected documents from {Movie Star [JX1, Att. B] CX0538 Protective
RX00019 | Smile} Investigative File, Case 07-223 CX0546 Order
PCTr. 2, 56 CX0029
[JX1, Att. B] CX0030-006
Selected documents from One West t0.007
RX00020 | Investigative File, Case 06-008 CX0228
PC Tr. 2,56 CX0093 6/18/2010
Selected documents from {Port City [IX1, Att. B] CX0477 Protective
RX00021 | Tanning} Investigative File, Case 08-018 Order
Selected documents from Sean PCTr. 2,56 CX0094
Powers/Savage Tan Investigative File, [JX1, Att. B] CX0247
RX00022 | Case 07-148




Exhibit

Exhibit Title/Description Transcript Page | Transcript Page | Exhibit Confidential
Number Where Exhibit Where Exhibit Cross- Treatment
Admitted Discussed | Reference
PCTr. 2, 56 CX0039
Selected documents from Serenity Day [JX1, Att. B} CX0286
RX00023 | Spa Investigative File, Case 05-210 CX0620
Selected documents from SheShe Studio PCTr. 2,56 CX0353
RX00024 | Spa Investigative File, Case 07-026 [JX1, Att. B]
PCTr. 2,56 CX0054-002
Selected documents from Signature Spas [JX1, Att. B] to 006
RX00025 | Investigative File, Case 06-193 CX0287
Selected documents from {Spa White/ PCTr. 2,56 CX0258 6/18/2010
White Science} Investigative File, Case [IX1, Att. B] Protective
RX00026 | 07-020 Order
' PCTr. 2, 56 CX0044-001
Selected documents from Star [7X1, Att. B] CX0045-002
Bright/Cutting Crib Investigative File, ) to 006
RX00027 | Case 06-114 CX0233
PCTr. 2,56 6/18/2010
Selected documents from {Suave D's} [JX1, Att. B] Protective
RX00028 | Investigative File, Case 09-272 Order
: Selected documents from Sunsational Tan | PC Tr. 2, 56 CX0248
RX00029 | Investigative File, Case 07-120 [JX1, Att. B] CX0621
PCTr. 2,56 CX0307-001 6/18/2010
Selected documents from {Tom Jones [JX1, Att. B] CX0308-001 Protective
Express Smile} Investigative File, Case to 003, 007- Order
RX00030 008

09-049




Exhibit

Exhibit Title/Description

Transcript Page | Transcript Page | Exhibit Confidential
Number Where Exhibit Where Exhibit Cross- Treatment
Admitted Discussed Reference :
Fax from {Mike Doyle to Carolin PCTr. 2,56 6/18/2010
Bakewell w/advertisement from Triad [JX1, Att. B] Protective
Body Secrets} Investigative File, Case 08- Order
RX00031 | 195
Selected documents from {WOW PCTr. 2,56 6/18/2010
Whitening on Wheels} Investigative File, | [JX1, Att. B] Protective
RX00032 | Case 09-049 Order
: PCTr. 2,56 CX0032-003
Selected documents from Great White [I1X1, Att. B] CX0033-003
RX00033 | Investigative File, Case 03-184 to 005
Newsletter of North Carolina Board of PCTr. 2, 56
RX00034 | Massage & Bodywork Therapy [IX1, Att. B]
Newsletter of North Carolina Board of PC Tr. 2, 56
Massage & Bodywork Therapy, Winter [IX1, Att. B]
RX00035 | 2007
Newsletter of North Carolira Board of PCTr. 2,56
Massage & Bodywork Therapy, Winter [JX1, Att. B]
RX00036 | 2008
PCTr. 2, 56
RX00037 | Kansas Dental Board Newsletter [JX1, Att. B]
Letter from Brian K. Bishop to Paradise PCTr. 2, 56
RX00038 | Tanning Salon w/ affidavit [JX1, Att. B]
Letter from Leah Diane Howell to White PCTr. 2,56
RX00039 | Smile USA [JX1, Att. B]
Letter from James F. Nagle to Joshua PCTr. 2,56
RX00040 | Granson [JX1, Att. B]




Exhibit

Exhibit Title/Description Transcript Page | Transcript Page | Exhibit Confidential
Number . Where Exhibit Where Exhibit Cross- Treatment
Admitted Discussed Reference
Letter from Tracy W. Wertz to Joshua PCTr. 2,56
RX00041 | Granson [JX1, Att. B]
Letter from Lindsey L. Deere to Joshua PCTr. 2,56
RX00042 | Granson [JX1, Att. B]
PCTr. 2, 56 CX0067-003
RX00043 | Newsletter article text [JX1, Att. B]
Open session minutes of the North PC Tr. 2, 56
Carolina Board of Massage & Bodywork | [JX1, Att. B]
RX00044 | Therapy
Supplemental Declaration of Perry W. PCTr. 2,56
RX00046 | Newson [JX1, Att. B]
Letter from Grayson G. Kelley to PCTr. 2, 56
RX00048 | Respondent Counsel [JX1, Att. B]
Designated Deposition Transcript of ALJ Order of
RX00049 | Stanley L. Allen, Jr., DDS 3/31/11
Designated Deposition Transcript of ALJ Order of
RX00050 | Carolin Bakewell 3/31/11
Designated Deposition Transcript of ALJ Order of
RX00051 | Benjamin W. Brown, DDS 3/31/11
Designated Deposition Transcript of ALJ Order of
RX00052 | Joseph S. Burnham, Jr., DDS 3/31/11
Designated Deposition Transcript of ALJ Order of
RX00053 | William Linebaugh Dempsey, IV 3/31/11
' Designated Investigational Hearing ALJ Order of
RX00054 | Transcript of W. Line Dempsey, IV 3/31/11
Designated Deposition Transcript of ALJ Order of
RX00055 | Zannie Poplin Efird 3/31/11




Exhibit Exhibit Title/Description Transcript Page | Transcript Page | Exhibit Confidential
Number Where Exhibit Where Exhibit Cross- Treatment
Admitted Discussed Reference
Designated Deposition Transcript of ALJ Order of
RX00056 | Clifford O. Feingold, DDS 3/31/11
Designated Deposition Transcript of ALJ Order of
RX00057 | Teresa W. Friddle 3/31/11
Designated Investigational Hearing ALJ Order of
RX00058 | Transcript of Terry W. Friddle 3/31/11
Designated Investigational Hearing ALJ Order of
RX00059 | Transcript of Casie S. Goode 3/31/11
Designated Deposition Transcript of ALJ Order of
RX00060 | Neplus S. Hall 3/31/11
Designated Deposition Transcript of ALJ Order of
RX00063 | Charles Wayne Holland, DDS 3/31/11
Designated Deposition Transcript of Sean | ALJ Order of
RX00064 | Kurdys 3/31/11
Designated Deposition Transcript of ALJ Order of
RX00065 | Bradley [Brad] C. Morgan, DDS 3/31/11
Designated Deposition Transcript of ALJ Order of
RX00071 | Michael L. Hasson, DDS 3/31/11
Designated Deposition Transcript of ALJ Order of
RX00074 | William M. Litaker, Jr., DDS 3/31/11
Designated Deposition Transcript of Gary | ALJ Order of
RX00075 | D. Oyster, DDS 3/31/11
Designated Deposition Transcript of M. ALJ Order of
RX00076 | Alec Parker, DDS 3/31/11




: Exhibit

Exhibit Title/Description

Transcript Page | Transcript Page | Exhibit Confidential
Number Where Exhibit Where Exhibit Cross- Treatment
Admitted Discussed Reference
PCTr. 2, 56 320:18 — 321:16
[JX1, Att. B] 2391:11 —
Expert Witness Report of Van B. 2391:17
RX00077 | Haywood, D.M.D. 2451:4—2451:6
PC Tr. 2, 56 1697:16 —
[JX1, Att. B] 1697:18
Expert Witness Report of Dr. David L. 1694:24 —
Baumer (Reply to Expert Report of 1695:10
RX00078 | Professor John Kwoka) 1844:2 — 1845:6
Amendment to Expert Witness Report of | PC Tr. 2, 56 '
Dr. David L. Baumer: Additional [JX1, Att. B]
RX00079 | Documents Relied Upon
Enforcement Actions in Industry/Sector: PCTr. 2, 56
Health Care -Professional Services. [JX1, Att. B]
RX00081 FY1996-2010) from FTC's website )
' PCTr. 2,56
RX00138 | Open letter from Joyce Osborn [JX1, Att. B]
Email string from George Nelson to P. 845-46 826:25-830:17 | CX821
RX00139 | Sherman 842:11 —842:21
1816 1807:10-1816:23
RX00140 | Dr. Baumer slideshow 1853:6 — 1853:19




Exhibit
- Number

Exhibit Title/Description

Transcript Page
Where Exhibit
Admitted

Transcript Page
Where Exhibit
Discussed

Exhibit
Cross-
Reference

Confidential
Treatment

RX00141

Giniger Comments by Haywood

2397 [except for
page 010]

2392:14 —2397:4

2404:25 - 2407:16

2417:17 - 2421:17
2428:4 —2432:4
2432:21 -
2435:12

2436:10 - 2449:19
2458:5 - 2459:15
2460:14 - 2472:16
2474:24 - 2477:17
2480:17 - 2512:12
2505:4 -2506:10
2750:13 -
2751:16

2927:16 —
2928:14

2980:5 - 2986:5
3001:16 —3002:4
3025:24 —3026:6




Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Title/Description

Transcript Page
Where Exhibit
Admitted

Transeript Page
Where Exhibit
Discussed

Exhibit
Cross-
Reference

Confidential
Treatment

RX00142

GrinRX Business Overview

2397

404:24 - 405:21
408:25 - 411:10
2548:24 - 25497
2550:15-2511:19
2552:14 —
2553:13

2553:25 -
2555:18

2556:2 - 2560:2
2573:25 -
2576:10

RX00143

ADA House of Delegates

2397

2560:24 - 2561:15

RX00144

2009 ADA Current Policies excerpt

2397

2563:23 —2564:5

RX00145

Giniger Power Swab Testimony

2397

RX00146

Summary Conclusions for FTC NC
Haywood

2397

2566:25 - 2573:9
2692:5 -2694:14
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DEMONSTRATIVE EXHIBITS OFFERED BY RESPONDENT

NOTE: None of Respondent’s demonstrative exhibits have been accorded confidential treatment.

- Exhibit Exhibit Title/Description Transcript Page Transcript Page Exhibit Cross-
Number Where Exhibit Where Exhibit Reference
. Admitted Discussed

Thompson Insurance Enterprises webpage re: PCTr. 2,56

Independent Contractors Insurance for Teeth [JX2, Att. C]

Whitening and Beauty & Health Professionals
RX00080 | Insurance Application

Article: When It Comes to Tooth Whitening, PCTr. 2,56 462:3 -462:11
RX00082 Shoppers Beware [JX2, Att. C]

News Report: Mall Teeth Whitening: Is It Safe?; PC Tr. 2, 56 462:12 - 462:16
RX00083 New Trend in Billion Dollar Industry [JX2, Att. C]

Article: Sarah Albrecht, What Are the Dangers of PC Tr. 2, 56 462:19 - 462:22
RX00084 Teeth Whitening?, ehow.com [1X2, Att. C]

Article: David Chandler, Dangers of Tooth PCTr. 2,56 462:23 - 462:25
RX00085 Whitening Chemicals and Treatments [JX2, Att. C]

PC Tr. 2, 56 463:1 - 463:2

RX00086 Article: Julia Temple, Dangers of Tooth Whitening | [JX2, Att. C]

Article: Special Report: Hidden Dangers of Teeth | PC Tr. 2, 56 463:3 -463:5
RX00087 Whitening [1X2, Att. C]

Article: Teeth Whitening Dangers?, PCTr. 2,56 463:6 - 463:7
RX00088 teethvvhiteningreviews.com [IX2, Att. C]

Article: Laurel Naversen Geraghty, The Dangers of | PC Tr. 2, 56 463:8 - 463:10
RX00089 | Teeth Whitening, Prevention [1X2, Att. C]

PCTr. 2, 56 463:11 - 463:12

RX00090 Article: The Dangers of Teeth Whitening [JX2, Att. C]
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Exhibit

Exhibit Title/Description Transcript Page Transcript Page Exhibit Cross-
Number Where Exhibit Where Exhibit Reference
Admitted Discussed
Press release: How Safe Is a Bright Smile?, Green | PC Tr. 2, 56 463:13 - 463:23
RX00091 Facts [JX2, Att. C]
Article: C.D.N. Morris, Tooth Whiteners-The Legal | PC Tr. 2, 56 463:25 - 464:3
RX00092 Position, British Dental Journal [IX2, Att. C] 505:24 - 506:14
American Academy of Pediatric Dentistry, Policy | PC Tr. 2, 56 464:4 - 464:8 CX0589
on the Use of Dental Bleaching for Child and [IX2, Att. C]
RX00093 Adolescent Patients
Article: Barney Calman, It Seemed as if My Teeth | PC Tr. 2, 56 464:9 - 464:12
Had Been Dipped in Acid; Now I Drink Coffee [IX2, Att. C]
RX00094 Through a Straw, The Mail
Better Business Bureau, Teeth Whitening Products | PC Tr. 2, 56 464:15 - 464:18
RX00095 Sold Online Wipe Smile Off Consumers' Faces [JX2, Att. C]
Article: Harvard Health Letters, A Guide to Pearly | PC Tr. 2, 56
RX00096 Whites, Chicago Daily Herald [7X2, Att. C]
Editorial: Dan Jenkins, Defining Dentistry, TCDS | PC Tr. 2, 56
RX00097 Bulletin [IX2, Att. C}
Article: Eliot Van Buskirk, Whiter Teeth Products | PC Tr. 2, 56 464:19 - 464:22
Stained by Dismal Advertising Practices, [JX2, Att. C]
RX00098 wired.com
Article: Matt, Will the Real Dazzle Smile Please PCTr. 2,56 464:23 - 465:1
RX00099 Stand Up?, scamtimes.com [JX2, Att. C]
Article: Dental Boards Look to Stop Tecth- PC Tr. 2, 56
RX00100 | Whitening at Salons, Redorbit.com [IX2, Att. C]
Article: Anna Velasco, Teeth Whitening in State PCTr. 2,56
Needs a Dentist; Desist Letters Sent to Spas, [IX2, Att. C]
RX00101 Beauty Parlors, Mall Booths, Birmingham News
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Exhibit

Exhibit Title/Description Transcript Page Transcript Page Exhibit Cross-
Number Where Exhibit Where Exhibit Reference
Admitted Discussed
PC Tr. 2,56
RX00102 Georgia Board of Dentistry Minutes — 3/6/2009 [JX2, Att. C]
Atrticle: Andy Miller, Licensing at Issue; Dental PC Tr. 2,56
Group Frowns on Kiosk Whitening, Atlanta [IX2, Att. C]
RX00103 Journal-Constitution
Position Statement of Iowa Dental Board on Tooth | PC Tr. 2, 56
Whitening/Bleaching Services by Non-Licensed [IX2, Att. C]
RX00104 Persons
PC Tr. 2, 56
RX00105 | Kansas Dental Board Minutes — Jan. 2010 . [JX2, Att. C]
PC Tr. 2, 56
RX00106 Kansas Dental Board Minutes - Jan. 2009 [JX2, Att. C]
Kentucky Board of Dentistry Newsletter -- Spring | PC Tr. 2, 56
RX00107 | 2008 [JX2, Att. C]
Kentucky Board of Dentistry Newsletter - Fall PCTr.2, 56
RX00108 2008 [JX2, Att. C]
Kentucky Board of Dentistry Newsletter - Fall PCTr. 2,56
RX00109 | 2009 [JX2, Att. C]
Article: Anish Gupta, Louisiana Debates Mobile PCTr. 2, 56
RX00110 | Dentistry, ASDA News [I1X2, Att. C]
BORID Policy on Tooth Whitening Services PCTr. 2, 56
RX00111 (Massachusetts) [1X2, Att. C]
Proposed Findings of Fact; Conclusions of Law; PC Tr. 2,56
and Recommended Order in In re Proposed [IX2, Att. C]
Disciplinary Treatment of the Salon License of
Burtello Salon, Montana Board of Barbers and
RX00112 Cosmetologists

13




Exhibit

Exhibit Title/Description

Transcript Page Transcript Page Exhibit Cross-
Number Where Exhibit Where Exhibit Reference
Admitted Discussed
Notice of Amendment re: rule of Montana Board of | PC Tr. 2, 56
Barbers and Cosmetologists, Montana [JX2, Att. C]
RX00113 Administrative Register .
Article: Erin Nicholes, Teeth-Whiteners Abound, PC Tr. 2, 56 465:2 - 465:9
but Which Is Better - the Dentist's or the Store's, [IX2, Att. C]
RX000114 | Montana Standard
Article: Salon, State in Pearly White Fight, Billings | PC Tr. 2, 56 465:10 - 465:12
RX00115 Gazette [1X2, Att. C]
New Report: Sue Manteris, Should You Trust Your | PC Tr. 2, 56 465-13 - 465:16
RX00116 | Teeth Whitening at the Mall? [I1X2, Att. C]
PC Tr. 2, 56 465:17 - 465:19
RX00117 Article; Teeth Whitening May Be Health Concern | [JX2, Att. C]
N.D. Issues Cease-and-Desist Order Against XM PC Tr. 2, 56
RX00118 Brands, Inc. and Kenneth Jacobi, Jamestown Sun [JX2, Att. C]
Policy Regarding Bleaching Services Offered in PC Tr. 2, 56
Mall Kiosks and Salons By Non-Licensed Dental [JX2, Att. C]
RX00119 | Personnel (Ohio)
News Report: Teeth-Brightening Business Shut PC Tr. 2, 56 465:20 - 465:23
RX00120 | Down [JX2, Att. C]
PC Tr. 2, 56
RX00121 Article: In S.C., The State [1X2, Att. C]
News Report: Lindsay Patterson, Teeth Whitening | PC Tr. 2, 56
RX00122 | Kiosks Close in Oklahoma [JX2, Att. C]
News Report: State Dental Board Bans Teeth PCTr. 2,56
RX00123 Whitening at Mall Kiosks [JX2, Att. C]
Article: Dentists Angry About Non-Dental Teeth PC Tr. 2,56
RX00124 Whitening Clinics, watchdognation.com [I1X2, Att. C]
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Exhibit Exhibit Title/Description Transcript Page Transcript Page Exhibit Cross-
Number Where Exhibit Where Exhibit Reference
Admitted Discussed
PC Tr. 2, 56
RX00125 Policy Statement: Teeth Whitening (Wisconsin) X2, Att. C]
Article: Tom Morton, Dental Board Opposes PCTr. 2, 56
Salon's Teeth-Whitening Service, Casper Star- [IX2, Att. C]
RX00126 | Tribune
Article: Tom Morton, Salon Ends Teeth-Whitening | PC Tr. 2, 56
RX00127 Service, Casper Star-Tribune [IX2, Att. C]
Media Release: Magistrate Rules Against Tooth PC Tr. 2, 56
RX00128 Whitening, Australian Associated Press [1X2, Att. C]
Article: Magistrate Rules Against Therapist PCTr. 2, 56 465:24 - 466:6
RX00129 | Whitening Teeth, Australian Associated Press [IX2, Att. C]
Article: Randy Lang, Cosmetic Cowboys, Oral PCTr. 2,56
RX00130 | Health Journal [IX2, Att. C]
Webpage: Bartletts Solicitors, Claiming PC Tr. 2, 56
RX00131 Compensation for Tooth Whitening Accidents [JX2, Att. C]
Press Release: Massachusetts Dental Society, PCTr. 2, 56
RX00132 | Shopping for Tooth Whitening at the Mall? [JX2, Att. C]
News Report: David Wade, Curious if Teeth PC Tr. 2, 56 466:7 - 466:9
RX00133 | Whitening at Mall Kiosks Is Safe [IX2, Att. C]
Article: Leslie Kwoh, N.J. Dental Group Files Suit | PC Tr. 2, 56
Against Tanning Salon Chain Offering Teeth [IX2, Att. C]
RX00134 | Whitening
Article: Donna Domino, NJDA Sues Tanning PC Tr. 2,56
RX00135 Salons Over Whitening , [JX2, Att. C]
. Page two of letter from Algis Augustine to George | PC Tr. 2, 56
RX00136 | Nelson [JX2, Att. C]
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Exhibit

| Exhibit Title/Description Transcript Page Transcript Page Exhibit Cross-
Number Where Exhibit Where Exhibit Reference
Admitted Discussed
Press Release: BleachBright America! Laser Teeth | PC Tr. 2, 56
RX00137 Whitening! FDA Approved! Safe & Affordable [J1X2, Att. C]
JOINT EXHIBITS
Exhibit Exhibit Title/Description Transcript Page Transcript Page Exhibit Cross-
Number Where Exhibit Where Exhibit Reference
Admitted Discussed
JX0001 Stipulations on Admissibility of Party Exhibits PC Tr. 2,56 1697:19 — 1697:20
JX0002 Second Stipulation of Admissibility of party PC Tr. 2,56 459:3 —466:22
Exhibits 502:18 —503:14
504:10 - 505:6
505:24 — 506:15
506:23 - 507:2
JX0003 Third Stipulation of Admissibility of Party Exhibits | ALJ Order of 3/31/11
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION
OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES

In the Matter of

OF DENTAL EXAMINERS,

)
)
)
THE NORTH CAROLINA [STATE] BOARD ) DOCKET NO. 9343
) :
)
Respondent. )

)

RESPONDENT’S WITNESS LIST
PURSUANT TO RULE 3.46(c)

ALL-STATE LEGAL®

EXHIBIT



RESPONDENT’S WITNESS LIST PURSUANT TO RULE 3.46(c)

WITNESS NAME | IDENTIFICATION TRANSCRIPT IN CAMERA
PAGES TREATMENT

Dr. David L. Head, Department of | 1684-1687
Baumer Business 1690-1702
Management, N. C. | 1705-1709

State University; 1711-1712

Respondent’s expert | 1714-1736

economics witness 1742-1744

1761-1794

1796-1801

1803-1805

1807-1824

1826-1857

1859-1865

1870-1872

1874-1878

1880-1881

1884-1888

1892-1905

1907-1945

1948-1987

Dr. W. Stan Licensed NC dentist; | 2759-2785
Hardesty former State Board | 2787-2823
President 2828-2879

Dr. Van B. Professor, 2383-2392
Haywood Department of Oral | 2397-2398
Rehabilitation, 2400-2413

School of Dentistry, | 2414-2422

Medical College of | 2427-2431

Georgia; 2433-2434

Respondent’s expert | 2436-2449

teeth whitening 2451-2454

expert 2458-2478

2480-2501

2504-2512

2515-2522

2525-2542

2544-2550

2552-2555

2557-2627

2629-2684

2692-2751

2895-2901




WITNESS NAME | IDENTIFICATION TRANSCRIPT IN CAMERA
PAGES TREATMENT
Dr. Van B. 2903-2960
Haywood (cont.) 2962-3012
3014-3023
3025-3028
3030-3035
Dr. Ronald K. Licensed NC dentist; | 1434-1463
Owens current State Board | 1466-1467
President; former 1469-1518
State Board 1520
Secretary-Treasurer | 1535-15%94
1596
1601-1611
1616-1644
1646-1679
1682
Brian K. Runsick National Distribution | 2100
Sales Manager for 2102-2146
Jones-Frank Corp.; | 2148-2155
complained to the 2157-2178
State Board about a
teeth whitening
injury
Dr. Larry F. Tilley | Licensed NC dentist | 1996-2007
who evaluated Mr. 2009-2017
Runsick at the State | 2019-2025
Board’s request 2027
2030
2035-2041
2043-2044
2047-2048
2050-2061
2063-2056
2058-2061
2063-2071
2072-2085
2087-2098
Dr. Millard W. Licensed NC dentist; | 1276-1294
“Buddy” Wester, 111 | Board Secretary- 1296-1307
Treasurer 1311-1392
1394-1417




WITNESS NAME

IDENTIFICATION

TRANSCRIPT
PAGES

IN CAMERA
TREATMENT

Bobby White

Chief Operations
Officer for the State
Board

2188-2233
2234-2235
2236-2247
2254-2277
2279-2289
2291-2299
2302-2352
2354-2360
2362-2376
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PROTECTIVE ORDER GOVERNING DISCOVERY MATERIAL

Commission Rule 3.31(d) states: “In order to protect the parties and third parties
against improper use and disclosure of confidential information, the Administrative Law
Judge shall issue a protective order as set forth in the appendix to this section.” 16 C.F.R.
§ 3.31(d). Pursuant to Commission Rule 3.31(d), the protective order set forth in the
appendix to that section is attached verbatim as Attachment A and is hereby issued.

ORDERED: ° W
” 7 . Michael Chappell

Chief Administrative Law Judge

Date: June 18, 2010



ATTACHMENT A

For the purpose of protecting the interests of the parties and third parties in the
above-captioned matter against improper use and disclosure of confidential information
submitted or produced in connection with this matter:

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT this Protective Order Governing
Confidential Material (“Protective Order”) shall govern the handling of all Discovery
Material, as hereafter defined.

1. As used in this Order, “confidential material” shall refer to any document or portion-
thereof that contains privileged, competitively sensitive information, or sensitive personal
information. “Sensitive personal information™ shall refer to, but shall not be limited to,
an individual’s Social Security number, taxpayer identification number, financial account
number, credit card or debit card number, driver’s license number, state-issued
identification number, passport number, date of birth (other than year), and any sensitive
health information identifiable by individual, such as an individual’s medical records.
“Document” shall refer to any discoverable writing, recording, transcript of oral
testimony, or electronically stored information in the possession of a party or a third
party. “Commission” shall refer to the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”), or any of
its employees, agents, attorneys, and all other persons acting on its behalf, excluding
persons retained as consultants or experts for purposes of this proceeding.

2. Any document or portion thereof submitted by a respondent or a third party during a
Federal Trade Commission investigation or during the course of this proceeding that is
entitled to confidentiality under the Federal Trade Commission Act, or any regulation,
interpretation, or precedent concerning documents in the possession of the Commission,
as well as any information taken from any portion of such document, shall be treated as
confidential material for purposes of this Order. The identity of a third party submitting
such confidential material shall also be treated as confidential material for the purposes of
this Order where the submitter has requested such confidential treatment.

3. The parties and any third parties, in complying with informal discovery requests,
disclosure requirements, or discovery demands in this proceeding may designate any
responsive document or portion thercof as confidential material, including documents
obtained by them from third parties pursuant to discovery or as otherwise obtained.

4. The parties, in conducting discovery from third parties, shall provide to each third
party a copy of this Order so as to inform each such third party of his, her, or its rights
herein.

5. A designation of confidentiality shall constitute a representation in good faith and after
careful determination that the material is not reasonably believed to be already in the
public domain and that counsel believes the material so designated constitutes
confidential material as defined in Paragraph 1 of this Order.



6. Material may be designated as confidential by placing on or affixing to the document
containing such material (in such manner as will not interfere with the legibility thereof),
or if an entire folder or box of documents is confidential by placing or affixing to that
folder or box, the designation “CONFIDENTIAL-FTC Docket No. 9343” or any other
appropriate notice that identifies this proceeding, together with an indication of the
portion or portions of the document considered to be confidential material. Confidential
information contained in electronic documents may also be designated as confidential by
placing the designation “CONFIDENTIAL-FTC Docket No. 9343” or any other
appropriate notice that identifies this proceeding, on the face of the CD or DVD or other
medium on which the document is produced. Masked or otherwise redacted copies of
documents may be produced where the portions deleted contain privileged matter,
provided that the copy produced shall indicate at the appropriate point that portions have
been deleted and the reasons therefor.

7. Confidential material shall be disclosed only to: (a) the Administrative Law Judge
presiding over this proceeding, personnel assisting the Administrative Law Judge, the
Commission and its employees, and personnel retained by the Commission as experts or
consultants for this proceeding; (b) judges and other court personnel of any court having
jurisdiction over any appellate proceedings involving this matter; (c) outside counse] of
record for any respondent, their associated attorneys and other employees of their law
firm(s), provided they are not employees of a respondent; (d) anyone retained to assist
outside counsel in the preparation or hearing of this proceeding including consuitants,
provided they are not affiliated in any way with a respondent and have signed an
agreement to abide by the terms of the protective order; and () any witness or deponent
who may have authored or received the information in question.

8. Disclosure of confidential material to any person described in Paragraph 7 of this
Order shall be only for the purposes of the preparation and hearing of this proceeding, or
any appeal therefrom, and for no other purpose whatsoever, provided, however, that the
Commission may, subject to taking appropriate steps to preserve the confidentiality of
such material, use or disclose confidential material as provided by its Rules of Practice;
sections 6(f) and 21 of the Federal Trade Commission Act; or any other legal obligation
imposed upon the Commission.

0. In the event that any confidential material is contained in any pleading, motion, exhibit
or other paper filed or to be filed with the Secretary of the Commission, the Secretary
shall be so informed by the Party filing such papers, and such papers shall be filed in
camera. To the extent that such material was originally submitted by a third party, the
party including the materials in its papers shall immediately notify the submitter of such
inclusion. Confidential material contained in the papers shall continue to have in camera
treatment until forther order of the Administrative Law Judge, provided, however, that
such papers may be furnished to persons or entities who may receive confidential
material pursuant to Paragraphs 7 or 8. Upon or after filing any paper containing
confidential material, the filing party shall file on the public record a duplicate copy of
the paper that does not reveal confidential material. Further, if the protection for any
such material expires, a party may file on the public record a duplicate copy which also
contains the formerly protected material.
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10. If counsel plans to introduce into evidence at the hearing any document or transcript
containing confidential material produced by another party or by a third party, they shall
provide advance notice to the other party or third party for purposes of allowing that
party to seek an order that the document or transcript be granted in camera treatment. If
that party wishes in camera treatment for the document or transcript, the party shall file
an appropriate motion with the Administrative Law Judge within 5 days after it receives
such notice. Except where such an order is granted, all documents and transcripts shall
be part of the public record. Where in camera treatment is granted, a duplicate copy of
such document or transcript with the confidential material deleted therefrom may be

placed on the public record.
11. If any party receives a discovery request in any investigation or in any other
proceeding or matter that may require the disclosure of confidential material submitted by
another party or third party, the recipient of the discovery request shall promptly notify
the submitter of receipt of such request. Unless a shorter time is mandated by an order of
a court, such notification shall be in writing and be received by the submitter at least 10
business days before production, and shall include a copy of this Protective Order and a
cover letter that will apprise the submitter of its rights hereunder. Nothing herein shall be
construed as requiring the recipient of the discovery request or anyone else covered by
this Order to challenge or appeal any order requiring production of confidential material,
to subject itself to any penalties for non-compliance with any such order, or to seck any
relief from the Administrative Law Judge or the Commission. The recipient shall not
oppose the submitter’s efforts to challenge the disclosure of confidential material. In
addition, nothing herein shall limit the applicability of Rule 4.11(e) of the Commission’s
Rules of Practice, 16 CFR 4.11(e), to discovery requests in another proceeding that are
directed to the Commission.

12. At the time that any consultant or other person retained to assist counsel in the
preparation of this action concludes participation in the action, such person shall return to
counsel all copies of documents or portions thereof designated confidential that are in the
possession of such person, together with all notes, memoranda or other papers containing
confidential information. At the conclusion of this proceeding, including the exhaustion
of judicial review, the parties shall return documents obtained in this action to their
submitters, provided, however, that the Commission’s obligation to return documents
shall be governed by the provisions of Rule 4.12 of the Rules of Practice, 16 CFR 4.12.

13. The provisions of this Protective Order, insofar as they restrict the communication
and use of confidential discovery material, shall, without written permission of the
submitter or further order of the Commission, continue to be binding after the conclusion
of this proceeding.



